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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Oak Hill Cemetery Chapel, the only known example of Renwick's Gothic 
Revival church design in the District of Columbia, is located in Oak Hill 
Cemetery (Georgetown) Washington, B.C. The cemetery grounds are bounded by 
R Street, N.W. on the south, Montrose Park on the west, and Rock Creek on the 
north and east. The Chapel (which faces west) is about 350 feet east of the 
gatehouse and slightly to the north, at about the point where 29th Street 
intersects R Street. The one story, rectangular chapel measures 23'2" by 41' 
2", with the buttresses (2 feet deep) adding 4 feet to each dimension. The 
sides have four bays, the facade one.

"""" The Chapel is constructed of Potomac gneiss, laid in random courses 
generally 4 1/2 to 9 inches high. Red sandstone is used throughout the 
building for the water table, the five sided belt course (about 5 in. thick) 
which runs below the windows, the window enframement, buttress caps, frieze 
and cornice, decorative bell cote at the west gable end and the elaborate 
gothic finial at the east gable end. The east-west gable roof is of grey 
slate.

The west facade contains the main entrance with a large two leaf pointed 
door with 4 lancet panels in each leaf. The door is painted brown and is 
protected by a wrought iron gate with strap decoration (below) and leaf 
patterns (above). Over the entrance door there is a rose window with wood 
mullions and frame, and with 12 quatrefoils around the perimeter. At the 
north and south sides of the Chapel the lancet windows are framed with sand 
stone and contain wooden frames and mullions. Each window is composed of 
two lancets with a quatrefoil in the apex. On the rear elevation there is a 
large lancet window with wooden mullions, painted brown.

The interior is a rectangular space measuring 19'10" x 37'8". The walls 
are paneled with a dark wood wainscotting to a height of 50". The ceiling 
is one of the most decorative features of the interior. It is divided into 
four north-south bays by the roof trusses (whose lower edges form a pointed 
arch). The slope of the roof in each bay is divided into six squares plus 
two half squares formed at the top next to the ridge and at the bottom next 
to the plate. Each square is filled with a large quatrefoil with chamfered 
edges, through which one can see the vertical boarding of the roof. The 
trusses which form the four bays have pierced floral leaf drops at the 
spring. Three of the trusses are free standing; the two at the east and the 
west are apparently attached to the end walls. All of the ceiling construc 
tion is of contrasting hues of dark wood.

The double lancet windows are 44" wide with a brown painted heavy wood 
frame and mullions. In the apex is a fleur-de-lis quatrefoil pane. The 
lancets are of light colored glass, with a pink to violet outer border, blue 
inner border, and light cream or yellow glass in the central panels. The 
fleur-de-lis and other features are yellowish. Two windows on either side 
have lower panels which pivot open. The large east window is predominantly 
light green, with a large central panel depicting a winged angle holding a 
wreath of victory in each hand.

Both the site and the architecture of the Oak Hill Chapel have remained 
virtually unchanged in the 120 years since the Chapel was built.

(The above architectural description is taken almost verbatim from George- 
town Architecture, No. 10: see bibliography.)
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Oak Hill Cemetery 
Chapel a Category II landmark of importance which contributes significantly 
to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. 
This pleasing, well proportioned Chapel was designed by James Renwick in 
1850 and sits on the highest ridge of the cemetery. The Chapel, often 
referred to as a miniature Gothic gem is an excellent example of Gothic 
Revival architecture. The finely proportioned chapel with its double 
lancet windows, skiliful use of material in the contrast of sandstone and 
gneiss as well as attention to detail reflects the sensitivity of the archi 
tect. The Chapel is the only known example of Renwick f s Gothic Revival 
Church design in the District of Columbia. James Renwick, (1818-1895) 
architect of the Chapel, also designed Grace Church in New York City as 
well as St. Patrick's Cathedral. He was appointed architect of the Smith- 
sonian Institution in 1846 and the resulting building was one of the most 
important examples of American Gothic Revival.

The original 12 1/2-acres of the approximately 16-acre site of Oak Hill 
Cemetery were conveyed to the cemetery company by William W. Corcoran in 
1848. In addition to the gift of the cemetery, Corcoran spent over one 
hundred thousand dollars in its beautification and provided in its charter 
that it should "be forever inalienable." Corcoran (1798-1888) was an ex 
tremely generous man whose most notable gift to the City of Washington was 
the Corcoran Art Gallery (see National Register: Renwick Museum and also 
Corcoran Gallery of Art). Captain George de la Roche (1791-1861) was hired 
by Corcoran to survey and lay out the cemetery. De la Roche was by pro 
fession a civil engineer although he did practice architecture; his best 
known work was the old United States Naval Observatory.

The Oak Hill Cemetery is known not only for its beauty and wooded set 
ting, but also for some of the important monuments located there. The Van 
Ness Mausoleum (Category II Landmark) designed by George Hadfield and 
modeled after the Temple of Vesta is found in Oak Hill as in the granite 
monument to E.M. Stanton, the Secretary of War under Lincoln. Corcoran had 
the remains of John Howard Payne, author of "Home Sweet Home" removed to 
the cemetery, Alexander de Bodisco, the Russian Ambassador was buried 
there in 1854. Corcoran himself is buried in the cemetery. The cemeterj^ 
gatehouse, built in 1850, is a handsome brick miniature Italianate villa.
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